
CITY OF HILLSBORO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

Agenda – Regular Meeting - Tuesday, September 21, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81383457941  

 
A.  Meeting Called to Order 

 
B. Approval of Minutes From 9-7-2021 Meeting 

 
C. Approval of Vouchers totaling $419,348.98 

 
D.  Public Comments 

 
E. Business 

 
1. Charter Ordinance 22 
2. KDOT Grant Application Submission 
3. CBK Inc. Agreement 
4. Brush Truck Bids 
5. Transformer Restock 
6. Voting Delegates for LKM 
7. ELCON Invoices Totaling $752.31 

 
 

F. Board Appointments 
 

G. City Administrator’s Report 
 

H. Council Comments 
 

I. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81383457941


Hillsboro, Kansas 
September 7, 2021 
 
1. The City Council met in regular session via Zoom and in person, on Tuesday, August 17, 2021 at 4:00pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Brent Driggers, Renee Gehring and Byron McCarty participating.  
 
2. Others Participating:  Kimberlyn Gilchrist, City Attorney; Madeline Reida, Marion County Record; Laura 
Paulus, Hillsboro Free Press; Greg Vahrenberg, Raymond James; Heather Goering, Accounts Payable & Payroll 
Clerk; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; and Danielle Bartel, City Clerk.  
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 4:00pm. 
 
4. MINUTES:  Council member Gehring motioned to approve the minutes as presented and Council member 
McCarty seconded. Motion carried.  
 
5. VOUCHERS:  Council member McCarty motioned to approve vouchers in the amount of $648,988.78; Council 
member Driggers seconded. Motion carried.  
 
Administrator Stiles introduced Heather Goering, who started in August as the Accounts Payable and Payroll 
Clerk.  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS: None. 
 
7. BUSINESS 
 
REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE HEARING:  Mayor Thurston opened the Revenue Neutral Rate (RNR) Hearing to the 
public. No public comments were shared. The Council did not have any comments. The RNR Hearing was closed.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve Resolution 2021-06 to exceed the Revenue Neutral Rate and 
authorize the Mayor to sign; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion approved 3-0. 
 
2022 BUDGET HEARING:  Mayor Thurston opened the 2022 Budget Hearing to the public. No public comments 
were shared. The 2022 Budget Hearing was closed. 
 
Administrator Stiles noted a format change to the budget in order to accommodate state and county 
requirements. He also shared the Recreation Commission held an RNR Hearing and a Budget Hearing. Council 
member Driggers motioned to approve the 2022 Budget; Council member McCarty seconded. Motion approved 
3-0. 
 
BOND REFUNDING OPPORTUNITY:  Greg Vahrenberg of Raymond James provided an explanation of the 
refunding opportunity that could provide a net savings of up to $33,000. The bonds available to be refunded 
include 2007A, 2011A and 2011B. Vahrenberg recommended the Council pursue refunding by direct placement 
which would be at no cost and no risk to the City. 
 
Motion by Council member McCarty to approve Resolution 2021-07 authorizing the underwriting and sale of 
refunding bonds, and authorize the Mayor to sign. Council member Driggers seconded. Motion approved 3-0.  
 
CEREAL MALT BEVERAGE (CMB) LICENSE FOR PUEBLO VIEJO:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the application 
received from Pueblo Viejo and recommended approval. Council member Gehring motioned to approve the 
CMB license as requested and Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried. 
 
RATIFICATION OF ORDINANCE 1330A:  Administrator Stiles explained the clerical error. Council member 
Gehring motioned to approve the request to ratify Ordinance 1330 as Ordinance 1330A; Council member 
McCarty seconded the motion. Motion approved 3-0.  
 
ORDINANCE 1333 PARALLEL GENERATION:  Administrator Stiles provided an overview of the current policy for 
solar customers as approved in April 2020. He recommended replacing the current policy with this Parallel 
Generation Ordinance, as recommended by the State of Kansas and Kansas Power Pool. The City of Hillsboro 
currently has three solar customers. Council member McCarty motioned to approve Ordinance 1333 and 
authorize the Mayor to sign; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion approved 3-0. 
 
ORDINANCE 1334 STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE:  Administrator Stiles reviewed both Ordinance 1334 and 
1335 and requested the Council adopt the revised versions of the Standard Traffic Ordinance (STO) and the 
Uniform Public Offense Code (UPOC). Council member Gehring motioned to approve Ordinance 1334 and 
authorize the Mayor to sign; seconded by Council member McCarty. Motion approved 3-0. 
 



ORDINANCE 1335 UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE:  Council member McCarty motioned to approve Ordinance 
1335 and authorize the Mayor to sign; seconded by Council member Driggers. Motion approved 3-0. 
 
PROCLAMATION FOR PUBLIC POWER WEEK:  Administrator Stiles noted Public Power Week will be October 3-9, 
2021. A food drive and other activities will take place during that week. Council member McCarty motioned to 
approve the Proclamation and authorize the Mayor to sign; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion 
approved.   
 
WATER PRODUCTION PURCHASE:  Administrator Stiles requested approval for the water production purchase in 
the amount of $12,060. Motion by Council member Driggers to approve the purchase; seconded by Council 
member McCarty. Motion approved 3-0. 
 
SEWER LAGOON PURCHASE:  Administrator Stiles requested approval for a wire purchase for the lagoon project 
in the amount of $10,180. Council member Driggers motioned to approve the purchase; Council member 
McCarty seconded. Motion carries 3-0. 
 
PART TIME POLICE OFFICER WAGE INCREASE REQUEST:  Administrator Stiles requested a wage increase for all 
part time police officers in order to retain quality reserve officers. The financial impact is expected to be $3,200 
annually. Council member McCarty motioned to approve a wage increase for part time police officers from $15 
per hour to $18 per hour effective immediately; Council member Gehring seconded. Motion carried. 
 
2022 POLICE PATROL VEHICLE:  Administrator Stiles reviewed a bid received from Hillsboro Ford for a 2022 
Interceptor Explorer for $32,511 for the police department. Council member McCarty motioned to approve the 
order for a new patrol vehicle as requested; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion approved. 
 
RECORDS RETENTION POLICY #92:  The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the City to follow 
regarding which documents to retain and for what period of time. Administrator Stiles noted these guidelines 
are in line with State law. Council member Driggers motioned to approve the Records Retention Policy; 
seconded by Council member Gehring. Motion approved unanimously.  
 
SHUTOFF POLICY #93:  Administrator Stiles reviewed recommended changes to the shutoff policy. If approved, 
delinquency notices will be mailed on or after the 16th and service termination notices will be delivered on the 
final Monday of each month. Customers will have 24 hours to pay the outstanding balance at City Hall. Services 
will be shut off on Tuesday afternoon if payment has not been made, and services will not be restored until 8am 
on Wednesday. Council member McCarty motioned to approve the Electrical Service Disconnection Policy as 
presented; Council member Gehring seconded. Motion carried.  
 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT POLICY #94:  Administrator Stiles highlighted the need for new housing in the 
community and this policy would be an incentive for developers to build in the City of Hillsboro. Council member 
Driggers motioned to approve the Housing Development Policy; Council member McCarty seconded. Motion 
approved.  
 
PROPOSAL FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT DIRECTOR POSITION:  Administrator Stiles requested approval for 
a new full-time position as stated in the staff report. The Museum Advisory Board approved of this direction and 
he shared the board would like to see more regular hours at the museum. Council member McCarty motioned 
to approve the new Community Engagement Director position; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion 
approved.   
 
ELCON INVOICES TOTALING $17,184.85:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the recent Elcon invoices. Council 
member McCarty motioned to approve payment of the invoices; Council member Driggers seconded. Council 
member Gehring abstained. Motion approved.   
 
REAPPOINT BRAD JANTZ AS STANDARD HEARING OFFICER: Administrator Stiles requested the Council 
reappoint Brad Jantz as the City’s Standard Hearing Officer and shared Brad also serves as the municipal judge. 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve this reappointment; Council member Driggers seconded. Motion 
carried. 
 
The Council recessed into a Land Bank meeting at 5:15pm and resumed the Council meeting at 5:20pm.  
 
8. BOARD APPOINTMENTS:  Mayor Thurston highlighted two board appointments for consideration including 
Nikki Jones and Alvin Hett.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to appoint Nikki Jones to the Hillsboro Housing Authority; Council member 
Driggers seconded. Motion approved. 
 
Council member Gehring motioned to appoint Alvin Hett to the Hillsboro Library Board; Council member 
McCarty seconded. Motion approved.  



 
9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  City Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

 Ken Carlson Accident 
 128 S Main Property 
 Splash Park Delay  
 Arts & Crafts Fair 
 Fiber Project Update 
 KPP Public Power Week 
 Sales Tax 

 
10. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council member McCarty requested the Code Enforcement Officer review the status 
of vehicles in an alley. No additional Council comments.   
 
11. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 5:25pm. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 ______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  
 



Thu Sep  9, 2021  2:41 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page     1

APCHCKRP 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG

MANUAL CHECKS (09/09/21) $46,248.72



Thu Sep  9, 2021  1:40 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     1

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/09/21)



Thu Sep  9, 2021  1:40 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     2

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/09/21)



Thu Sep  9, 2021  1:40 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     3

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/09/21)



Thu Sep  9, 2021  1:40 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     4

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/09/21)

dbartel
Text Box
NOTE: PAYROLL WITHHOLDINGS OF $27,084.47 ARE NOT INCLUDED ON THE SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST.   19,164.25+27,084.47 46,248.72 = 09/09/2021 CHECK REGISTER DB



Tue Sep 14, 2021 11:26 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page     1

APCHCKRP 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG

MANUAL CHECKS (09/14/21) $10,798.05



Tue Sep 14, 2021 11:07 AM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     1

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/14/21)



Tue Sep 14, 2021 11:07 AM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR MANUAL CHECKS (09/14/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  2:23 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page     1
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

APCHCKRP 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG

COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21) $362,302.21



Thu Sep 16, 2021  2:23 PM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

APCHCKRP 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG

COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21) $362,302.21



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     1
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     3
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     4
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     5
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     6
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     7
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     8
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page     9
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page    10
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Thu Sep 16, 2021  1:32 PM SCHEDULED CLAIMS LIST Page    11
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

HKMESSGE 07.01.21  City of Hillsboro KS                                                 OPER: HRG
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FOR COUNCIL CHECKS (09/21/21)



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 9/21/2021 

Re: Charter Ordinance 22 – Allowing the City Website to be the Official Newspaper 

Background: Charter Ordinance 22, if passed would allow the City to designate the city’s website as 
the official city newspaper for publication with a follow-up resolution. As described in the ordinance, 
KSA 12-1651, which outlines requirements for the official city newspapers, does not apply uniformly to 
all cities in Kansas. Under the city’s home rule power, the city can offer substitute provisions for 
uniformly applied state law.  

All charter ordinances require a 2/3 majority vote of the governing body including the Mayor. The full 
ordinance must be published twice in consecutive weeks then there is a 60 day period in which the 
protest petition can be filed. The petition must be signed by no less than 10% of the electors that 
voted in the last regular city election. According to the November 2020 general election results there 
were 1,125 votes cast in the city election, meaning 113 registered voters would need to sign a 
petition. If a petition is successfully filed it would go to general vote of the electorate.  

There are two factors related to this proposed ordinance. First is the cost of legal publications which is 
roughly $5,000 per year, but can vary depending on actions taken. Second is the publication schedule 
for the newspaper results in official actions of the city being delayed by a week. Using the city’s 
website ensures that actions taken by the council that require publication can take effect the next day.  

Financial Impact: The financial gain from moving to the city website is roughly $5,000 per year. We 
also purchases ads with both the Marion Record and Hillsboro Free Press which would continue. For 
informational purposes the legal publication rate at the Marion Record is $14.95 per column inch and 
a $5 fee for affidavits of publication. The column inch rate for the Free Press is $12.00, with no charge 
for affidavits.    

Recommendation: Approve Charter Ordinance 22 and authorize the Mayor to sign.  

 



TWG Ref: 872844 
Charter Ordinance (Official City Newspaper) 

(Published in The Hillsboro Star Journal on _________, 2021 and __________, 2021) 
 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 22 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE EXEMPTING THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, 
KANSAS, FROM THE PROVISIONS OF K.S.A. 12-1651, PROVIDING 
SUBSTITUTE PROVISIONS REGARDING THE DESIGNATION OF THE 
OFFICAL CITY NEWSPAPER, AND CREATING SECTION 1-119, CHAPTER 
I, ARTICLE I OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (the “City”), is a city of the second class duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 12, Section 5, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, 
cities are empowered to determine their local affairs and government except for legislative 
enactments applicable uniformly to all cities; and 
 

WHEREAS, K.S.A. 12-1651 applies to the City, and its provisions are not uniformly 
applicable to all cities in that K.S.A. 12-1651 applies only to cities of the second and third class; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City hereby determines that it is in the best interest 
of the City to exempt the City from K.S.A. 12-1651 and to provide substitute provisions for such 
statute; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds it necessary and advisable to create Section 1-119 of Chapter I, 

Article I of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (the “City”) relating to the designation of the 
official city newspaper.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS: 
 

Section 1. Inapplicability. The City, by virtue of the powers vested in it by Article 12, Section 
5, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, hereby elects to exempt itself from and hereby make 
inapplicable to it the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1651. Such referenced provision is applicable to the 
City but is part of enactments not uniformly applicable to all cities and the City finds and determines 
it necessary and advisable to provide substitute provisions as set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Substitute Provisions. By virtue of the powers vested in it by Article 12, Section 

5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, the City hereby enacts the following substitute and 
additional provisions of K.S.A. 12-1651 by creating Section 1-119, Chapter I, Article I of the Code. 
Section 1-119, Chapter I, Article I of the Code is created to read as follows: 

 
1-119.  Official Newspaper or Website. 
 

The Governing Body of the City shall designate by resolution from time to time an 
official city newspaper that meets one of the qualifications set forth below. Once designated 



TWG Ref: 872844 
Charter Ordinance (Official City Newspaper) 

the publication method shall be the official city newspaper until such time as the governing 
body designates a different official city newspaper by resolution. 

 
(a) The newspaper selected as the official city newspaper may be a printed newspaper which 

has the following qualifications: (i) It must be published at least weekly 50 times each 
year and have been so published for at least one year prior to the publication of any 
official city publication; (ii) It must be entered at the post office of publication as second-
class mail matter; (iii) More than 50% of the circulation must be sold to the subscribers 
either on a daily, weekly, monthly or yearly basis; and (iv) It shall have general paid 
circulation on a daily, weekly, monthly or yearly basis in the county and shall not be a 
trade, religious or fraternal publication; or 
 

(b) In the alternative, the official city newspaper may be a designated website which has the 
following qualifications: (i) It  must be a public facing website available to website users 
at all times, except during website maintenance as reasonably determined necessary by 
the City Administrator; (ii) The website must be the easily accessible from the City’s 
website home page (https://www.cityofhillsboro.net); (iii) It must be available to website 
users free of charge; and (iv) All current notices and unrepealed ordinances uploaded to 
the website for publication shall be uploaded in their entirety during any period they are 
in effect.  
 

Section 3.  Publication. This Charter Ordinance shall be published once each week for two 
consecutive weeks in the official City newspaper. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This is a Charter Ordinance and shall take effect 61 days after 
final publication, unless a sufficient petition for a referendum is filed and a referendum held on this 
Ordinance as provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subdivision (c) (3) of the Constitution of the State 
of Kansas, in which case this Ordinance shall become effective if approved by the majority of the 
electors voting thereon. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 
 



TWG Ref: 872844 
Charter Ordinance (Official City Newspaper) 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by two-thirds majority of the Governing Body 
of the City and approved by the Mayor this 21st day of September, 2021. 
 

CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS 
 
 

[seal] 
By        
    Lou Thurston, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By       
    Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 
          Passed: 
          Published: 
 
          Effective: 
 
 
 
 
 



TWG Ref: 872844 
Charter Ordinance (Official City Newspaper) 

EXCERPT OF MINUTES 
 

The Governing Body of the City met at City Hall at the usual place in the City on September 
21, 2021 at 4:00 p.m., with Mayor Lou Thurston presiding, and the following members of the 
Governing Body present: 
 
 
and the following members absent:  
 
  
 

Thereupon, and among other business, there was presented to the Governing Body, a 
Charter Ordinance entitled: 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE EXEMPTING THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, 
KANSAS, FROM THE PROVISIONS OF K.S.A. 12-1651, PROVIDING 
SUBSTITUTE PROVISIONS REGARDING THE DESIGNATION OF THE 
OFFICAL CITY NEWSPAPER, AND CREATING SECTION 1-119, CHAPTER 
I, ARTICLE I OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS. 
 
Thereupon, the Charter Ordinance was considered and discussed; and on motion of 

________________, seconded by ______________, the Charter Ordinance was adopted by a two-
thirds majority vote of all members elect of the Governing Body. 
 

Thereupon, the Charter Ordinance having been adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of 
the members of Governing Body, it was given No. 22 and directed to be signed by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk; and the City Clerk was directed to cause the publication of the 
Ordinance twice as set forth therein and required by law. 
 

**** 



TWG Ref: 872844 
Charter Ordinance (Official City Newspaper) 

CITY CLERK’S 
CERTIFICATION OF EXCERPT OF MINUTES 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct Excerpt of the Minutes of the 

proceedings at the ____________, 2021 meeting of the Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro, 

Kansas. 

 

 [seal] 

        
Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 9/21/2021 

Re: KDOT Cost Share Grant Application 

Background: The next round of KDOT Cost Share Grant for local streets is approaching. Darin 
Neufeld from EBH has asked if the City would be interested in resubmitting our previous round 
projects. The attached project sheet shows we would complete Adams from 1st to A street and 
Commerce Street from Industrial to the wrap around on Santa Fe.  

The minimum required cost match is 15%. Darin has provided estimates for 15%, 20% and 25%. To 
have a competitive application a 20% match is probably advisable. The city would also be responsible 
for 100% of the design and inspection, which have been estimated at $95,000 per project.  

Financial Impact: The required city contribution would be close approximately $415,200. KDOTs 
contribution would be $900,800 in the 20% scenario. The true cost to the city is 32% when factoring in 
design and inspection. The project funds would be needed in the 2023 or 2024 budget year. That 
amount would likely need to be financed by the city. If the council was adverse to the cost, the project 
could be reduced to just Adams street or Commerce. The percentage could also be reduced.   

Recommendation: Approve submitting a grant application for KDOT’s cost share grant for the 
___________ project at a local match of ____%.   

 



HILLSBORO  ‐ KDOT COST SHARE PROGRAM 9/2/2021

Adams St ‐ A St to First St

Item Quantity Unit Total

Mobilization 1 LS 50,000.00$   /ea 50,000.00$    

Pavement and Base Removal 3500 sy 12.00$           /sy 42,000.00$    

4" Crushed Base over Geo 3800 sy 20.00$           /sy 76,000.00$    

6" Concrete Pavement 3100 sy 65.00$           /sy 201,500.00$  

Rem/repl Curb & Gutter 1800 lf 45.00$           /lf 81,000.00$    

Seeding 1 LS 2,500.00$     /ea 2,500.00$       

Traffic Control 1 LS 5,000.00$     /ea 5,000.00$       

Construction Total 458,000.00$  

KDOT Cost Share program  KDOT Share 85% 389,300.00$  

only funds construction Local Share 15% 68,700.00$    

100% of design and inspection

is funded by local entity KDOT Share 80% 366,400.00$  

Design approx = $45,000 Local Share 20% 91,600.00$    

Inspection approx = $50,000

KDOT Share 75% 343,500.00$  

Local Share 25% 114,500.00$  

Unit Cost

Scope:  Remove all pavement & curb, new 36' back to back street of 6" concrete 

pavement over 4" crushed base and geogrid

25% construction match $209,500

Total Local Costs 15% construction match $163,700 / 20% construction match $186,600 /



Commercial ‐ Industrial St to end of pavment on Santa Fe

Item Quantity Unit Total

Mobilization 1 LS 50,000.00$   /ea 50,000.00$    

Grading & Prep 6300 sy 10.00$           /sy 63,000.00$    

8" Concrete Pavement 5400 sy 80.00$           /sy 432,000.00$  

Curb & Gutter 3300 lf 35.00$           /lf 115,500.00$  

Seeding 1 LS 2,500.00$     /ea 2,500.00$       

Traffic Control 1 LS 5,000.00$     /ea 5,000.00$       

Construction Total 668,000.00$  

KDOT Cost Share program  KDOT Share 85% 567,800.00$  

only funds construction Local Share 15% 100,200.00$  

100% of design and inspection

is funded by local entity KDOT Share 80% 534,400.00$  

Design approx = $45,000 Local Share 20% 133,600.00$  

Inspection approx = $50,000

KDOT Share 75% 501,000.00$  

Local Share 25% 167,000.00$  

Unit Cost

Scope:  Grade Existing Rock base, add material as required to get exact width, new 36' 

back to back street of 8" concrete pavement

Total Local Costs 15% construction match $195,200 / 20% construction match $228,600 /

25% construction match $262,000



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 9/21/2021 

Re: CBK Agreement 

Background: The proposed agreement is with CBK for collection services for delinquent utility and 
municipal court bills. Currently we have over $80,000 in uncollected debt many of which are years 
past due. For uncollected delinquent debts, the City utilizes the Kansas Set-off program which collects 
debts from individual state income tax returns. Often cases submitted to the Set-off program can stay 
in the system for years before collecting, if they are ever collected on.  

As proposed in the agreement CBK would take on collection duties for the city, collecting a 30% fee 
for outstanding principal collected. While that may seem high, is in line with industry standards which 
can reach 50%. Attached is some information about CBK, its methods and other communities that 
have opted to use their services. To date 122 cities use their services along with 8 district courts, 2 
counties and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. 

An important thing to remember with any collection service is that the City controls what accounts are 
shared with the service. Operationally we always try to work with customers who struggle to pay. It is 
only those who do not work with us that would be sent over to CBK. The City completely controls what 
accounts are submitted to CBK. Generally accounts or cases which we have not received 
communication after 6 months would be referred to CBK. In that time the City would make multiple 
attempts to contact the person. If the council would prefer to adopt a more formal policy on the use 
CBK then we could provide that at a future meeting. 

Financial Impact: Obviously there is a large amount of uncollected utility fees and court fees. The 
city has had limited success at collecting those in house. Bring on CBK would greatly increase the 
likelihood of collecting some portion of the debt. Though there is a 30% fee, collecting 70% of a 
delinquent account is much more than we have been able to collect independently. The fee based 
CBK agreement means that the City pays nothing unless the debt is collected on.   

Recommendation: Approve the agreement with CBK and authorize the Mayor to sign.  

 



 
GOVERNMENT COLLECTION CONTRACT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of __________, __________ by and between CBK, Inc., a corporation hereinafter 
referred to as “AGENCY” and, _____________________________________________, a governmental entity, hereinafter referred to as “CLIENT”.  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, CLIENT desires to designate various accounts for collections; and WHEREAS, Agency desires to accept and pursue said claims.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto do agree as follows: 

1. Agency will use its best efforts and resources to collect accounts forwarded. Collection activities shall be in compliance with Federal, State 
and Local laws and regulations, including the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.  Agency shall be courteous and businesslike, consistent 
with the image and reputation of Client. To the best of their ability, Client warrants that all accounts are valid and legally enforceable debts. 
Client will send accurate and legitimate claims and further agrees to cooperate with Agency in the investigation of the same, which 
includes providing documentation supporting the claim as may be requested by Agency, and to keep Agency apprised of any changes in 
circumstance or information regarding the same.  Agency shall be entitled to the contingency fee and costs on the accounts forwarded as 
stated below, upon the Agency sending its first communication to Debtor.  
 

2. Fees and Charges  
a. AGENCY/ AR; Agency shall charge, and Client agrees to pay Agency, a fee on principal amounts collected at a rate of _30_% 

on all accounts forwarded to Agency (in the event the Client has an Ordinance, agreement, or contract in place allowing for fees to be added to the debt, 

Agency would then add the percentage to the amount turned for collection).  
b. Municipal Court Debts: The cost of collections for these debts will be added to the amount forwarded and charged to the debtor. 

Agency will pay Client 100% of the amount forwarded, when collected. The rate the Agency will charge for these debts will be 
_30_%.   

c. AGENCY/ CHECKS; At the election of the Client, Agency will collect on returned checks that are sent both electronically and 
manually. Agency will pay the Client 100% of the face amount collected and _0_% of any Returned Check Service Fee on all 
checks when collected by Agency or through the efforts of Agency. Agency will also pay the Client _0 % of any damages 
collected on any check that is collected through legal action.  Agency shall retain any attorney fees assessed, pursuant to statute. 
Agency shall remit payment to Client for all returned checks collected for the previous month by the 10th of the following month. 
Check Clients must provide the attached Addendum A with this agreement.  

d. All interest that is charged on all accounts forwarded to Agency by Client will be split at a rate of _0_% for the Client and 
_100_% for the Agency.   

e. REFERRAL TO ATTORNEY; The Agency shall institute legal proceedings in the name of Client with the attorney of Agency's 
choosing.   This includes the selection of local counsel that may appear on behalf of Client.  Client has the right to object to the 
use of any attorney with good cause, to include conflicts.  All litigation instituted shall be in the name of the Client and all court 
costs, surcharges, and other litigation expenses will be advanced by Agency and said funds will be deducted off the following 
Client’s transmittal disbursement to reimburse the Agency.  

i. The fees stated in (c) are intended to cover a routine case through the district court level.  Unusual situations, such as 
counter claims, appeals, or bankruptcy litigation, are not covered.  In the event of such unusual situations, cross petition 
or any other claim, Agency will advise Client in a timely matter. Client has the option to either recall the matter and 
defend the counter claim or have the Agency’s attorney proceed with the representation of the matter at a mutually 
agreed upon hourly rate. 

ii. In the event that Client's cases or claims are referred out of state, the contingency fee agreement shall be increased to 
50%, as allowed by law.  
 

3. STATEMENTS; The Agency will submit monthly statements to Client of the net amount received the previous calendar month, by the 10th 
of the month following collection, along with the remittance of all monies recovered minus Agency fee. The Client shall report payments 
(via fax, Client Portal, email, or through another form of communication agreed upon by both parties) at the time of receipt on accounts 
assigned to the Agency. Said statements shall be sent to Client at 



__________________________________________________________________________ or another address designated by the Client in 
writing. The Client agrees to remit to Agency any amount due to Agency within thirty (30) days of receipt of the monthly statement. 
 

4. RECORDS; The Agency will maintain records as they pertain to each account in such a manner as to be auditable by Client during normal 
working business hours upon reasonable notice given to Agency. 
 

5. COMPROMISE SETTLEMENT; Agency shall not have authority to accept a compromise settlement on the amount forwarded, without 
the Client’s prior approval.  
 

6. TERM; This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for twenty-four (24) months.  This contract shall renew upon the initial and 
subsequent anniversary dates for a length of time equal to the initial term stated in this agreement, unless notice is received by either party 
of intent of non-renewal at least 90 days prior to the anniversary date.  

 
7. TERMINATION; Either party may terminate this Agreement (with or without cause and without penalty) by giving thirty (30) days written 

notice of termination to the other party. For accounts on which judgment has been rendered through the means of legal action, Agency will 
charge and Client agrees to pay, the same fee Agency would have been entitled to receive on such accounts if the Agreement had not been 
terminated.  
 

8. REPORTS; Agency shall submit the following reports to Client monthly: 
a. Acknowledgment (Report sent based on when Client forwards accounts…monthly, bi monthly or weekly) 
b. Cancellation/Deletion  
c. Transmittal/Client Statement 

 
9. INDEMNITY;  

a. Agency agrees to defend and hold the Client harmless from and against any and all claims, judgments, costs, liabilities, negligent 
or wrongful acts, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs occasioned by, arising out of, related 
to, or in connection with any fact or omission of the Agency and its employees and agents, or any of them from failure of the 
Agency to comply with the provisions of this Agreement.  

b. Client agrees to defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all claims, judgments, costs, liabilities, negligent 
or wrongful acts, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs occasioned by or arising out of, 
related to, or in connection with any act or omission of the Client and its employees or from failure of the Client to comply with 
the provisions of the Agreement.  
 

10. GENERAL PROVISIONS;  
a. Agency shall serve as an independent contractor. This agreement does not constitute an employer/employee relationship.  
b. The captions of this Agreement are for convenience only and are not to be construed as modifying the text of the Agreement.  
c. All terms and conditions of this Agreement are severable. If one or more of the terms and conditions are deemed unenforceable, 

the remainder shall continue in full force and effect.  
d. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties and cannot be modified without a writing signed by both parties.  
e. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and sent Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, and shall be 

effective upon receipt.  
f. Client agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to the services provided hereunder. This 

agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Kansas.  Client may assign this 

Agreement only with prior written consent of Agency.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

successors and assigns of Agency and the heirs, executor, administrators, successors, and assigns of Client. 
g. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date listed below and shall remain in effect until either party serves 30 day 

written notice to the other.  Amendments to fees and charges shall take effect immediately. Other such amendments shall be 
effective thirty (30) days from mailing, except as specifically provided herein; this Agreement may not be altered, amended, or 
otherwise varied except by written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

11. CONFIDENTIALITY; Agency shall not disclose information relating to the debtor(s) to persons other than debtor(s), parents, or guardians 
of debtor(s) as necessary for payment purposes.  Agency shall not disclose information relating to Client’s operations without written 
consent of the Client or duly issued Court process or orders.  It is mutually understood that the Agency’s obligation to not disclose 
confidential and proprietary Client information hereunder shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this 
agreement will not be disclosed to anyone or any entity without written authorization. 
 

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter, 
supersedes any previous agreements and understandings, and can be changed only by written agreement signed by all parties. This 
agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and all such counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and 



the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement by facsimile and/or email shall be effective 
as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. 
 

13. Where Applicable and under the Health Insurance and Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), the Client is required to enter 
into specific Business Associate Agreements setting forth requirements of their agents relative to maintaining the privacy and 
confidentiality of patient-identifiable health information.  To comply with this requirement, the parties agree to enter into a separate 
Business Associate Agreement meeting the requirements of HIPAA, prior to April 14, 2003. 
 

14. Where applicable, and for all consumer debts, Agency further agrees to comply with the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 
known as Public Law #95-109. 
 

15. Any and all notices required herein, shall be sent to the addressee and address as designated below under AGENCY and CLIENT. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate.  

 

AGENCY: CLIENT: 

CBK, Inc. ________________________________________________ 

Address: Address: 

3615 SW 29th St ________________________________________________ 

Topeka, KS 66614 Phone: __________________________________________ 

Authorized Representative: Authorized Representative:  

Name: _____________________________ (please print) Name: _____________________________________ (please print) 

 

Signature: _____________________________________ Signature: ________________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________________ Title: ____________________________________________ 

Date: ________________ Date: _______________ 

 

 

 



 
Government Clients 

1 
Refer to page 2 for list of Municipal Clients 

 
 
 
District Courts: 
1. 1st Judicial District 

 Leavenworth, KS County 
 Atchison, KS County 

 

2. 6th Judicial District 
 Bourbon, KS County 
 Linn, KS County 
 Miami, KS County 

3. 15th Judicial District  
 Cheyenne, KS County 
 Logan, KS County 
 Rawlins, KS County 
 Sheridan, KS County 
 Sherman, KS County 
 Thomas, KS County 
 Wallace, KS County 

4. 17th Judicial District 
 Decatur, KS County 
 Graham, KS County 
 Norton, KS County 
 Osborne, KS County 
 Phillips, KS County 
 Smith, KS County 

5. 23rd Judicial District  
 Ellis, KS County 
 Gove, KS County 
 Rooks, KS County 
 Trego, KS County 

6. 26th Judicial District 
 Grant, KS County 
 Haskell, KS County 
 Morton, KS County 
 Seward, KS County 
 Stanton, KS County 
 Stevens, KS County 

7. 30th Judicial District  
 Barber, KS County 
 Harper, KS County 
 Kingman, KS County 
 Pratt, KS County 
 Sumner, KS County 

8. 31st Judicial District  
 Allen, KS County 
 Neosho, KS County 
 Wilson, KS County 
 Woodson, KS County 

 
 
Counties: 

1. Shawnee County 2. Norton County 
 
 
State Agencies: 

Kansas Department of Health and Environment 
 



 
Government Clients 

 

2 
Refer to page 1 for list of Government State Agency Clients 

Municipalities: 
1. Altoona 
2. Andover 
3. Atwood 
4. Auburn 
5. Augusta 
6. Baldwin City 
7. Basehor 
8. Baxter Springs 
9. Bel Aire 
10. Bird City 
11. Bronson 
12. Burlingame 
13. Caldwell 
14. Chapman 
15. Cheney 
16. Cherryvale 
17. Clay Center 
18. Clearwater 
19. Clifton 
20. Columbus 
21. Colwich 
22. Concordia 
23. Conway Springs 
24. Dodge City 
25. Douglass 
26. Edgerton 
27. Edna 
28. Edwardsville 
29. Ellis 
30. Erie 
31. Eudora 
32. Eureka 
33. Fairway 
34. Florence 
35. Ford 
36. Galena 
37. Garden Plain 
38. Garnett 
39. Goessel 
40. Grandview Plaza 
41. Gypsum 
  

42. Halstead 
43. Hays 
44. Haysville 
45. Herington 
46. Hesston 
47. Hiawatha 
48. Hoisington 
49. Holcomb 
50. Horton 
51. Hutchinson 
52. Ingalls 
53. Iola 
54. Johnson 
55. Junction City 
56. Kansas City 
57. Kingman 
58. La Cygne 
59. Lakin 
60. Lansing 
61. Lenexa 
62. Leoti 
63. Lincoln Center 
64. Linsborg 
65. Long Island 
66. Louisburg 
67. Lyndon 
68. Madison 
69. Maize 
70. Manhattan 
71. Marysville 
72. Merriam 
73. Minneola 
74. Minneapolis 
75. Mission Hills 
76. Mound City 
77. Mound Valley 
78. Moundridge 
79. Mount Hope 
80. Neodesha 
81. Newton 
82. Norton 

83. Oakley 
84. Oberlin 
85. Offerle 
86. Olathe 
87. Olpe 
88. Osage City 
89. Osawatomie 
90. Overbrook 
91. Parsons 
92. Phillipsburg 
93. Plainville 
94. Pleasanton 
95. Prairie Village 
96. Roeland Park 
97. Rossville 
98. Russell 
99. Saint George 
100. Saint John 
101. Saint Marys 
102. Salina 
103. Scott City 
104. Scranton 
105. Sedan 
106. Sedgwick 
107. Sharon 
108. Shawnee 
109. South Hutchinson 
110. Spring Hill 
111. Stafford 
112. Stockton 
113. Topeka 
114. Uniontown 
115. Valley Center 
116. Wakeeny 
117. Wakefield 
118. Wamego 
119. Waterville 
120. Wellington 
121. Winchester 
122. Winona 



 
 
 

 
 
 
WHY DOES CBK PERFORM BETTER THAN COMPETITORS? 
 
 

The advantage CBK brings to its’ clients are the combination of an in-house legal team within the 
Agency.  This allows CBK’s clients to benefit from both agency and legal collections all within a single 
environment.  In today’s world, fighting off a pandemic and dealing with all things surrounding that, how much 
time is left to handle important business? Knowing and understanding the REVENUE CYCLE of collections 
must include as many resources as possible to provide maximum recoveries. CBK is equipped to any and all of 
your collection needs. CBK provides the following advantages over other agencies: 

 
 Database  
 Professionalism 
 Agency/Legal  
 Experience  
 Willingness to help our Clients  

 
In reading the following and understanding how CBK can really assist you with all of your collection needs, 
keep one thing in mind. CBK only gets paid when you get paid, you will never pay CBK any collection fees, 
until CBK has paid you money for collecting your accounts. No up-front costs or hidden fees, you turn your 
accounts and we will collect your money…simple as that. So, if someone owes you money for anything 
(services rendered, or items purchased or anything) think of CBK and turn those accounts and let us help your 
bottom line! 

 
DATABASE: CBK specializes in all types of collection within Kansas and Missouri and provide higher 

recovery percentages for their clients.  CBK markets in Kansas and Missouri, as it best benefits our client 
base.  This practice strengthens the database and allows CBK to reach out to people more effectively within the 
collection arena.  Our client database is concentrated in Kansas and Missouri allowing CBK to specialize 
collections specifically in these areas. If you can find them, then you have a good chance to collect the debt 
from them. We have one of the largest databases among our competitors. This is really why you want us.  
Currently, CBK collects a variety of debt types that include: 

1. Government 
2. Accounts Receivables 
3. Bad Checks 
4. Contracts 
5. Utility 
6. Healthcare/Medical 
7. Subrogation 

PROFESSIONALISM:  CBK prides itself on its professional handling of cases to ensure the positive 
public image of its clients.  CBK keeps quality assurance, compliance and management teams that continuously 
monitor CALL RECORDINGS.  All calls are recorded and easily obtainable if a conversation between an 
account representative and a debtor is ever questioned. In an attempt to better serve our clients, CBK utilizes a 
third-party vendor to assist in analyzing every call for quality assurance reasons.   



                EXPERIENCE:  CBK employs a seasoned management team that is directly involved in all 
operations.  H&M has years of experience in Collection law and is an active practicing attorney.  Senior 
management has an average of 25 years’ experience with the company, and junior associates and supervisors 
have an average term of service with the company of 10+ years.   
 

AGENCY / LEGAL: CBK’s strength is its combined agency and legal resources that more effectively 
and efficiently handle accounts in the most time-sensitive manner.  Unlike stand-alone agencies with out of 
state attorney’s, CBK does not avoid legal processing when all other efforts have been 
exhausted.  Alternatively, unlike a stand-alone law office, CBK offers the legal arm the technologies available 
that are generally employed only be agencies (i.e. dialers, state of the art collection management system, fully 
qualified collections department, predictive analytics and scoring).  Furthermore, the legal department does not 
just depend solely on legal action, but a combination of legal action, letter series, and telephone techniques, 
combined with the legal capabilities to execute on judgments and turn them into revenue for our clients. This 
architecture must exist to complete the total revenue cycle, i.e. Agency and Legal all in one.  Further, a very 
important aspect is legal action preserves the statute of limitations perpetually.  We have collected bills that 
have been 10 years and older, agencies cannot do that.  To graphically explain what we are talking about, we 
have depicted a pie chart as to what an agency does and a pie chart as to what the combination of legal and 
agency generate.  The difference is astounding.  Agencies cannot compete in this environment.   
 

 
 
15 million in annual listings. We pride ourselves in collecting as much as we can as fast as we can for our 
clients and feel these are a few more reason why CBK stands above others. Our office has excelled at collecting 
for many Clients in Kansas on all types of debts and feel what sets us apart from those large national agencies 
are things like: 

1.       CBK knows the community, represents other clients in the same communities and can find people 
easier and faster. Debtors speak with people in Kansas, about their Kansas debts.  

2.       CBK’s in-house legal team makes legal action a seamless transition when required.   

3.       CBK provides extra services at no cost to our clients, such as: Credit report monitoring, to 
ascertain a debtor’s ability to pay, to see when they are making large purchases, getting new credit 
cards, or paying off other loans/debts.  In many cases, we issue subpoenas to credit granters to find 
pertinent information for those debtors that are adept at evading their obligations, or filing proofs of 
claim when debtors file bankruptcy on behalf of our clients.   

1st Ltr
8%

2nd Ltr
4%

Phone Calls
8%

Legal Demand Ltr
12%

Suit Filed
20%

Judgment
3%

Garnishments
25%

Court Action
18%

Subpoena's
2%

Recoveries

1st Ltr

2nd Ltr

Phone Calls

Legal Demand Ltr

Suit Filed

Judgment

Garnishments

Court Action

Subpoena's



4.       Familiarity with all Kansas courts enables ease of use in the legal system, allowing us to fully 
utilize all different types of collection methods to maximize collections. 

5.  Lastly, CBK prides itself in making sure each and every Client is not just a number in our 
database. On boarding new Clients, means new expenses and new tasking. The CBK Client Training 
Portal provides the ability to receive training on demand along with a proprietary application to 
make the data entry as easy as possible. 

                 CBK is unique in that being a Kansas/Missouri operated company; we cater specifically to the 
Kansas/Missouri demographic.  CBK utilizes one system for all cases, in agency and legal.  Client 
representatives can give immediate real time information on all cases, no matter the status.  Even legal 
payments are posted just once in CBK’s system so there is no delay in remitting and transmitting that 
information back to the client.  This is impossible for Agencies that employ third party legal counsel and must 
wait to receive that information and funds back.   
 
 
CBK offers a complete Collection Solution to all clients and can tailor one to fit your needs. With experience in 
Hospital collections dating back to 1982 and bad check collections dating back to 1993, we fully understand the 
needs of our clients and potential clients.  

 Collect as much as we can as fast as we can.  
 Treat those we are collecting from in a manner that insures their continued 

patronage of our client. 
 And always look for better ways to perform for our clients.  

 
We can tailor a program that fits your needs, with as many notices as you would like us to send and make as 
many phone attempts as you wish and as the laws allow. Our end game is your end game, bring as much 
resolution to your accounts as we can. Should you wish more information, we would be happy to share a more 
detailed version of how we handle accounts within our offices.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 9/21/2021 

Re: 2023 Brush Truck Bids 

Background: The next piece of equipment on the HFD equipment schedule for replacement is a 
brush truck unit. A department taskforce put together specs for replacement brush truck. The 
replacement is actually a heavy brush truck unit with a 1,500 gallon tank. The larger truck is more 
versatile, offering 50% more water and the ability to navigate grass fire areas better than the current 
truck.  

The taskforce developed specs and requested sealed bids from truck providers. We received four 
sealed bids: 

• Weis Fire: $279,271.00 
• Hays Fire and Rescue: $242,562.72 
• Watts Manufacturing: $250,340.00 
• Unruh Fire: $301,870.21 

 Bids were reviewed by the taskforce to ensure the specs were met. After that it was confirmed that 
the bid submitted by Hays Fire and Rescue did meet the specs and was the lowest bid. Lead time for 
the vehicle is over 15 months out, meaning we can expect delivery in early 2023.  

Financial Impact: The City and our township partners contribute annually to a fire equipment 
replacement fund. The amount of those contributions is based on the assessed valuation of the 
governmental unit, with Hillsboro paying the largest portion. The current fund has $103,613.02 
available. Each additional year roughly there is roughly $55,000 contributed to the replacement fund. 
In this scenario, there would be a 50% down payment with the remainder placed on a short term note 
with a local bank.    

Recommendation: Approve the bid from Hays Fire and Rescue at $242,562.72.    

 















































Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 9/21/2021 

Re: League of Kansas Municipalities Voting Delegates 

Background: The annual League of Kansas Municipalities meeting is being held at the LKM 
Conference on Monday, October 11. Based on the City’s population, we will receive two votes during 
the meeting and can select up to two alternate delegates. The governing body must formally approve 
those delegates to vote on LKM business on the city’s behalf.  Mayor Thurston, Danielle Bartel and I 
are attending the conference in Topeka and can serve in that role. I would recommend putting Mayor 
Thurston and myself as the voting delegates and selecting Danielle Bartel as the alternate.   

Financial Impact: NA    

Recommendation: Move to select Mayor Lou Thurston and City Administrator Matt Stiles as the 
voting delegates and City Clerk Danielle Bartel as a voting alternate.    

 





City Administrator’s Report 
September 21, 2021 

 

Arts and Crafts: The return of the annual Arts and Crafts Fair was a success. Everything went as planned 
with only minor issues with fair goers overheating. There were over 175 vendors this year, down from 
previous highs but good considering the circumstances COVID-19. Crowds were likewise smaller 
according to most vendors we spoke with, but still good considering.  

KPP Fall Planning Summit: Both Mayor Lou and I attend the annual KPP Fall Planning Summit in Wichita 
on September 16-18. There were some extremely informative sessions and speakers. There some things 
that the city could be doing to better position itself for future issues including participating in the GridX 
exercise this fall. I also presented during the community spotlight program talking about the soon to be 
adopted strategic plan.  

Strategic Plan Document: I will provide printed copies of the strategic plan document and email out a 
PDF if possible before the meeting. The document is very large because of the graphics and I’m still 
tinkering with the layout a little. As it stands I’m pleased with the look of the document and I hope that 
you’ll be as well.  

Rate Training at KMU: I attended a half day utility rate setting workshop at Kansas Municipal Utilities in 
McPherson on September 15. There were two in the class including me so I had an opportunity to ask 
some in-depth questions about water rate setting in the context of our Blue-green algae issues.  It was 
extremely helpful in thinking about how to design the rates to address the increased treatment cost 
we’ve been seeing. We will need to talk more about utilities rates before the end of the year.  

128 S Main: We have received word that the owner of the building has accepted our offer to purchase 
the property for $5,000. The offer has to be approved by the bankruptcy court before it can close. We 
also have bid for demolition, but it was bid in conjunction with Tabor using the contractor to demolish 
another building at the same time. The price may have to adjust depending on what Tabor does, but we 
are seeking some clarity on that.  

KPP Bill: Attached is the September KPP bill for month of August. Historically August is one of the more 
expensive months because electric usage is up during the hotter months. We used 3,265,930 kWh at a 
cost of $264,724.10. The February 2021 Storm Surcharge was $32,659.30.  

Health Insurance Savings Report: Attached is the August Health Insurance Savings Report from Freedom 
Claims Management. The first sheet details how are group is enrolled and those costs. The illustrative 
rate is what we would have been paying if we would have stayed full insured with BCBS. The second 
sheet shows the rates paid and the claims paid to date which is still zero since the plan started in July. 
Overall the city netted a savings of $16,168.82 which is kept in a bank account to pay future claims. The 
September report will start to have finalized claims paid equaling less monthly savings. That said early 
on the plan has performed as promised and we have had very few issues with employees. The biggest 
one being getting use to the two cards and waiting to pay bills until the secondary insurance has been 
paid.  



PLEASE NOTE NEW 
REMITTANCE ADDRESS

PLEASE REMIT TO:
KANSAS POWER POOL

DEPT 3423
P.O. BOX 123423

DALLAS, TX 75312-3423
City of

P.O. Box 125 Aug-21 9/13/2021
9/23/2021

Peak kW Date Hour Ending

7,884 8/25/2021 15:00

kW/kWh Rate $ Amount

7,884 kW $7.50 $59,130.00 $0.01811
7,884 kW $2.16 $17,029.44 $0.00521

RICE Upgrade 7,884 kW $0.26 $2,049.84 $0.00063
7,884 kW

0 kW
7,884 kW $10.85 $85,541.40 $0.02619

3,148,200 kWh
117,730 kWh

0 kWh
0 kWh
0 kWh

3,265,930 kWh $0.02376 $77,598.50 $0.02376

3,265,930 kWh ($0.00303000) ($9,895.77) ($0.00303)
3,265,930 kWh $0.01000000 $32,659.30 $0.01000

$264,112.71 $0.08087
$0.00
$0.00

$611.39
 
 
$0.02073000

$264,724.10

  
  

 

Service Month: Billing Date:  
Account # 380 Due Date:

 

Ave Cost per 
kWh

Demand Charges
Transmission

Administrative

Energy Cost Adjustment

TOTAL DEMAND AND ENERGY CHARGE

Delivered Capacity
Capacity Adjustment

Capacity Demand

Energy Charges
Metered Energy

Losses

FEB 2021 Storm Surcharge

 
 
 

Hillsboro
Attn: City Clerk

Hillsboro, KS  67063

Past Due / (Credit)
Correction for Prior Month Billing
Distribution Facility Charge
 

System average cost of energy in $/kWh

TOTAL BILLING THIS PERIOD

Generation
Unsch Generation

Energy Adjustment
Energy 



Employee Tier
# of 

Employees

Illustrative 

Rates

Total 

Illustrative 

Rates

Umbrella 

Policy Rates

Total 

Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 

Fee

Monthly 

Medical 

Claims 

Paid

Monthly 

Rx Claims 

Paid

Risk 

Management 

Fee

Gross 

Savings of 

Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings 

of Freedom 

Choice

Single 9 720.10$       6,480.90$     499.10$       4,491.90$     468.00$     

Employee/Spouse 8 1,440.19$   11,521.52$  998.21$       7,985.68$     416.00$     

Employee/Child 3 1,260.17$   3,780.51$     873.43$       2,620.29$     156.00$     

Family 6 1,800.24$   10,801.44$  1,247.76$   7,486.56$     312.00$     

26 32,584.37$  22,584.43$  1,352.00$  ‐$         ‐$         864.79$         8,647.94$  7,783.15$ 

July, 2021 through June, 2022

City of Hillsboro

911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for FreedomChoice

August, 2021

FreedomChoice
Group Health Plan

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc

P.O. Box 1365

Great Bend, KS  67530

620‐792‐9151 ‐ Telephone

620‐792‐3389 ‐ Fax



# of 

Employees

Total 

Illustrative 

Rates

Total Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 

Fee

Monthly Medical 

Claims Paid

Monthly Rx 

Claims Paid

Risk 

Management 

Fee

Gross Savings 

of Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings of 

Freedom 

Choice

July‐21 28 35,104.71$      24,331.29$    1,456.00$  ‐$                    ‐$                931.74$         9,317.42$       8,385.68$       

August‐21 26 32,584.37$      22,584.43$    1,352.00$  ‐$                    ‐$                864.79$         8,647.94$       7,783.15$       

September‐21 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

October‐21 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

November‐21 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

December‐21 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

January‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

February‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

March‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

April‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

May‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

June‐22 0 ‐$                  ‐$                ‐$            ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

67,689.08$      46,915.72$    2,808.00$  ‐$                    ‐$                1,796.54$      17,965.36$    16,168.82$    

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc

P.O. Box 1365 

Great Bend, KS  67530

620‐792‐9151 ‐ Telephone

620‐792‐3389 ‐ Fax

Group Health Plan

City of Hillsboro

911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for Freedom Choice

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

FreedomChoice


	Agenda 9-21-21
	2021.09.09 Council Minutes for approval
	2021.09.21 Checks for Approval
	2021.09.09 Check Register
	2021.09.09 Manual Checks for Approval
	2021.09.14 Check Register
	2021.09.14 Manual Checks for Approval
	2021.09.16 Check Register
	2021.09.16 Council Checks For Approval

	Charter 22 SR
	DOCS-#872844-v1-Charter_Ordinance__Official_City_Newspaper_(Hillsboro)

	KDOT Grant SR
	cost share KDOT app OPC

	CBK Agreement SR
	CBK Government Contract
	CBK Government Clients
	whycbk2021

	Brush Truck Replacement SR
	Hays Fire and Rescue

	Transformer PO
	DOC164

	LKM Delegates SR
	2021.09.13 Elcon Invoice for Approval
	Administrators Report 9-21-21
	Hillsboro KPP August Bill 2021 10
	AUG2021-CITY OF HILLSBORO




